Agenda Item 1

0
Lo!m-Agé FEﬁgoinssion
The Gateway Courdy

44 N. SAN JOAQUIN STREET  SUITE 374 STOCKTON, CA 95202  209-468-3198

Balancing Community and Commerce

SUMMARY MINUTES
September 14, 2023

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS

44. NORTH SAN JOAQUIN STREET, 6™ FLOOR
STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA

Chairman Patti called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Commissioners Breitenbucher, Diallo,
Johnson, Villapudua, and Chairman Patti

MEMBERS ABSENT: None

ALTERNATE MEMBERS Commissioner Barton, Dhatt

PRESENT:

ALTERNATE MEMBERS Commissioner Ding

ABSENT:

OTHERS PRESENT: J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer, Nubia

Goldstein, Legal Counsel; Paula de Souza;
Legal Counsel; Mitzi Stites, Commission Clerk
/ Analyst; and Claudia Iboa, Administrative
Assistant

9:04 a.m. Commissioner Ding arrived.

CONSENT ITEMS

The Chairman introduced Agenda Item No. 1, Summary of Minutes.

PHONE 209-468-3198 E-MAIL jdhightower@sjgov.org WEB SITE https://www.sjlafco.org



Chairman Patti opened the floor to Commissioner Comments.
No Comments were made.

Chairman Patti opened the floor to Public Comments.

No Comments were made.

Chairman Patti closed the floor to Public Comments.

A motion was made by Commissioner Villapudua and seconded by Commissioner
Johnson.

Chairman Patti asked for a Roll Call Vote:

Ayes: Commissioners Barton, Breitenbucher, Dhatt, Diallo, Johnson, Villapudua and
Chairman Patti

Noes: None

The Chairman introduced Agenda Item No. 2, Out-of-agency services request to the
City of Stockton is to provide out-agency sewer service outside the city boundary under
Government Code §56133 to 1939 S. Sinclair Avenue, 2312 McComb Avenue, 630 S.
Wilkie Avenue, 3417 S. Odell Avenue, 3450 Higgins Avenue and 100 E. Transportation
Court in Stockton.

Chairman Patti opened the floor to Commissioner Comments.

No Comments were made.

Chairman Patti opened the floor to Public Comments

No comments were made.

Chairman Patti closed the floor to Public Comments.

A motion was made by Commissioner Johnson and seconded by Commissioner
Villapudua

Chairman Patti asked for a Roll Call Vote:

Ayes: Commissioners Barton, Breitenbucher, Diallo, Johnson, Villapudua and
Chairman Patti

Noes: None



PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

4. INCORPORATION OF MOUNTAIN HOUSE COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT (LAFC 16-21)
(Action by Regular Members)
Request from Mountain House Community Service District for a
Reorganization to include Incorporation of the Proposed City of Mountain
House.

Mr. J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer, presented a PowerPoint presentation, which
provided provides an overview of the proposed reorganization including the incorporation
of Mountain House as the 8™ city in San Joaquin County.

The proposal has been initiated by resolution of application by the Mountain House
Community Services District on January 13, 2021, as amended by a revised resolution
on May 11, 2022.

The proposed Project area is located along the Alameda County-San Joaquin County
border, near the foothills of the Diablo range and north of Interstate 205 (1-205) in the
southwestern portion of San Joaquin County, California. The City of Tracy located to the
southeast, across 1-205, and the City of Livermore is located approximately eight miles
to the southwest.

The adoption of Resolution R-2021-01 and R-2022-16 by the MHCSD requesting LAFCo
to initiate proceedings for the incorporation of Mountain House was not a new idea but
rather a step consistent with the Mountain House Master Plan. The concept of
incorporation of Mountain House was envisioned as part of the “new town” concept of
the San Joaquin County 2010 General Plan that was adopted by the Board of
Supervisors on February 25, 1993. That General Plan benefited by a Final
Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) certified in 1992, and a Supplemental
Environmental Impact Report (SEIR) in early 1993.

The Mountain House Master Plan was adopted in November 10, 1994. The Master Plan
has acted an over-arching policy document for the development of the MHCSD. As a
result of adhering to Master Plan policies and plans, deliberate steps towards
incorporation have been taken for nearly 30 years. Following the provisions of the
Master Plan, the County and MHCSD have achieved a high quality-built environment.

The Master Plan objectives, policies, implementation measures and standards have
been refined and implemented with three (3) specific plans over the years.

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzburg Act (CKH), Section 56720 directs that the Commission
shall not approve or conditionally approve any proposal that includes an incorporation,
unless it finds, based on the entire record, that:



(a) The proposed incorporation is consistent with the intent of this division, including, but
not limited to, the policies of Sections 56001, 56300, 56301, and 56377.

(b) It has reviewed the spheres of influence of the affected local agencies and the
incorporation is consistent with those spheres of influence.

(c) It has reviewed the comprehensive fiscal analysis prepared pursuant to Section
56800 and the Controller's report prepared pursuant to Section 56801.

(d) It has reviewed the executive officer's report and recommendation prepared pursuant
to Section 56665, and the testimony presented at its public hearing.

(e) The proposed city is expected to receive revenues sufficient to provide public services
and facilities and a reasonable reserve during the three fiscal years following
incorporation.

J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer, went through each finding required by (CKH) and
explained those findings for the Mountain House reorganization.

The consideration of this reorganization including the incorporation of the City of Mountain
House incorporation has been well planned since the inception in the 2010 County General
Plan, over 30 years ago. The MHCSD has planned, constructed and maintained urban
services since before the issuance of the first building permit in the boundary area. Today
MHCSD provides services for an estimated 27,032 residents. The incorporation of the City
of Mountain House will enable residents to determine the environmental and economic
values of their elected and appointed officials facilitating local control of government. The
CFA found that incorporation is fiscally sound, ensuring that the City can provide services
for existing and future generations of Mountain House residents.

In part because of well planned and executed Mountain House Master Plan, by initially the
Board of Supervisors and since 2008 by a directly elected MHCSD Board, all necessary
findings for the reorganization can be made.

Chairman Patti opened the floor to Commissioner Comments.

No Comments were made.

Commissioner Patti opened the floor to Public Comments

Chairman Patti opened the floor to public and Commissioner Comments

No Comments were made.

Chairman Patti opened the floor to Public Comments.

J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer, introduced Steven Pinkerton, General Manager,
Mountain House Community Services District, who was on the phone. Mr. Pinkerton
stated that there were three board members. President Bernice King Tingle, Harry
Dhillon, Manuel Moreno and their staff in attendance at the meeting.

Bernice King Tingle, President of Mountain House Community Servies District, stated
she had a document that contained comments that she would like to submit for the

record. She informed the Commission that the some of the community concerns were
affordable housing, the monitor of CC&R'’s , Freeway traffic and Special Taxes.



Manuel Moreno Board Director of Mountain House Community Services District thanked
the Mountain House Community Services District and LAFCo Staff for all their hard work.

Harry Dhillon Board Director of Mountain House Community Services District thanked
everyone involved.

Chairman Patti asked if there were any Public Comments to be read into the record.

Mitzi Stites, Commission Clerk / Analyst, read a comment that was received from Celeste
Farron. Ms. Farron stated that as a 19-year resident of Mountain House, a former Board
Member, and former Board President of the Mountain House Community Services
District. She doesn’t agree that Mountain House CSD is ready to incorporate.

Chairman Patti closed Public Comments and opened the floor to Commissioner
Comments.

Commissioner Johnson stated incorporation has been planned since 1996 and all
pertinent information is well documented and complies with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg
Act. That compliance is the role of LAFCo and incorporation is the next step for Mountain
House residents.

Commissioner Barton inquired what if any impact on the growth in Mountain House for
housing and population for unincorporated verses incorporation. Would there be any
difference in the next 20 years with accelerated growth or is there no difference.

Mr. J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer, stated that the MHCSD has the same sphere
influence has the proposed City. Mountain House is looking at a population growth of
about 40,000 and that would take years. Right now, is about 27,000 people. The growth
can be accommodated within their SOl and won't change until the city adopts a general
plan that proposes expansion of the SOI. The first General Plan should be completed
three years after the incorporation.

Commissioner Barton inquired if there would there be a growth cap for the City of
Mountain House.

Mr. J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer, stated that there is not one proposed by the
reorganization.

Commissioner Barton stated a concern regarding regional traffic and potentially adding
more traffic on 1-205 that already has a chronic traffic problem. Adding more residents
it's not going to making the situation better. Are there any plans to mitigate that.

Mr. J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer, based on input received from Mountain House
residents and their stated traffic concerns residents are looking forward to a regional
solution and having a seat with San Joaquin Council of Governments to discuss
improvements.



Commissioner Breitenbucher stated that his experience with Mountain House is through
coaching. They are really involved in their community. This project was put together by
MHCSD staff. This is great for San Joaquin County and Mountain House residents.

Commissioner Villapudua explained how he's grateful for the staff hard work and is
looking forward to seeing Mountain House become a city.

The resolution that was placed on the Dias was revised slightly for clarification
purposes. Paula de Souza, Partner, BB&K, went through the changes.

Chairman Patti thanked everyone who was involved in the Mountain House
Incorporation.

Chairman Patti asked if there was a motion and a second for approval of Resolution 23-
1526, a Resolution of the San Joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission Resolution
Making Determinations, Approving and Ordering a Reorganization to Include
Incorporation of the Proposed City of Mountain House Within the Area Identified as the
SJLAFCo Alternative Boundary and Establishing its Sphere of Influence; Detachment
of Specified territory From the Tracy Rural Fire Protection District; The Divestiture of
Certain Mountain House Community Services District (MHCSD) Powers; Annexation to
MHCSD to Include Additional Territory To Correspond With The LAFCo Alternative
Boundary; The Establishment of MHCSD As A Subsidiary District of the City of Mountain
House, and Adopting a Negative Declaration Related Thereto

Commissioner Johnson stated | like to approve the revised resolution 23-1526 and
seconded by Commissioner Diallo

Chairman Patti asked for a Roll Call Vote:

Ayes: Commissioner Breitenbucher, Diallo, Johnson, Villapudua and Chairman Patti
Noes: None

9:53 a.m. Commissioner Villapudua Stepped out of the Meeting.

4. Dissolution of Inactive Special District California Irrigation District
(Action by Regular Members)

J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer, presented it's the dissolution for California Irrigation
District formed in effort to provide to electrical service to Lathrop Industrial Park. LAFCo
received a letter from their attorney indicating no services were being provided. The
Districts had no assets since 2017. Before the staff recommended dissolution a survey
was to all the property owners within that district. None of the property owners returning
surveys were receiving service from the California Irrigation Service. CID needs to be
dissolved as it is no longer active.

Chairman Patti opened the floor to Commissioner Comments.
No Comments were made.



Chairman Patti closed Commissioner Comments and opened the floor to Public
Comments

A motion was made by Commissioner Breitenbucher and seconded by Commissioner
Diallo to approve resolution 23-1523 Approving the Dissolution of the California
Irrigation District

Chairman Patti asked for a Roll Call Vote:

Ayes: Commissioners Breitenbucher, Diallo, Johnson, and Chairman Patti

Noes: None

Absent: Villapudua

PUBLIC COMMENTS

5. No Comments were made.

EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMMENTS

6. Comments from the Executive Officer
Mr. J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer, stated the CAL-LAFCO conference October 18,

2023. The cancelation date to cancel the conference is September 21, 2023. Please let
the office know before then if you need to cancel.

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

7. No Comments were made.

9: 57 a.m. Commissioner Villapudua returned to Chambers.

CLOSED SESSION

8. Open Session Disclosure Regarding Closed Session Items pursuant to
Government Code Section 54957.7



9. Closed Session
Conference with Labor Negotiator Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6
Agency Designated Representative: Tom Patti / Doug White
Unrepresented Employee: Executive Officer J.D. Hightower

10. Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation pursuant to Government
Code Section 54956.9(a)
Name of Case: Tracy Rural County Fire Protection District with the City
of Tracy as named Real Party of Interest v. San Joaquin LAFCo
(San Joaquin County Superior Court Case No. 2019-9687)

Chairman Patti stated Commission will have a closed session and asked if we have a
report from closed session.

Nubia Goldstein, Partner, White Brenner, Legal Counsel, stated it depends on what the
Commission determines in Closed Session.

Commission went into Closed Session at 9:57 a.m.

11. Open Session Report on Closed Sessions pursuant to Government Code
Section 54957.1

Chairman Patti called the meeting back in session at 10:12 a.m.
Chairman Patti inquired if there were any announcements for the record.

Nubia Goldstein, Partner, White Brenner, stated that there is no reportable action on Items
9 and 10.

Chairman Patti thanked the Commission.

The meeting adjourned at 10:13 a.m.



mLAFCO i

The Gateway County

44 N. SAN JOAQUIN STREET  SUITE 374 STOCKTON, CA 95202  209-468-3198

EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

Balancing Community and Commerce

DATE: October 12, 2023
TO: LAFCo Commissioners
FROM: Douglas White, Interim General Counsel

suBJECT: Amendment to Executive Officer Employee
Contract

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Commission adopt Resolution No. 23-1528 approving the
First Amendment to the Employment Contract by and between the San Joaquin
County Local Agency Formation Commission and Jeffrey Hightower for Executive
Officer and authorize Commission Chair Tom Patti to execute these documents.

BACKGROUND

Jeffrey Hightower has served as LAFCO Executive Officer since September 16, 2022,
pursuant to an employment contract effective on that date (“Contract”). In negotiating
that contract, LAFCO and Mr. Hightower agreed that as part of Mr. Hightower’s total
compensation, he would receive group health insurance benefits, including a Cafeteria
Plan allowance, as provided by the “Executive Bargaining Unit Memorandum of
Understanding, as amended” (currently San Joaquin County Resolution R-23-93
implementing terms and conditions of employment for the Executive Representation
Group, passed and adopted June 6, 2023 (the “Resolution”). As agreed by LAFCO,
pursuant to section 2.1 of the Resolution, Mr. Hightower was to receive a bi-weekly
Cafeteria Plan allowance in the amount of $923.96.

On August 25, Mr. Hightower received a memorandum from the County Human
Resources Director statin that, “the effective date for rolling the cafeteria allowance into
the base wage salary and County benefits structure for the...Executive (A)" was to start
on August 28, 2023 with coverage benefits starting September 11, 2023. He was
formerly covered by his spouse’s insurance and was covered only until September 1,

PHONE 209-468-3198 E-MAIL jdhightower@sjgov.org WEB SITE https://www.sjlafco.org



2023. To be covered for the 11 days, Mr. Hightower elected to have insurance coverage
starting September 28 under the cafeteria plan arrangement.

Because of the unique timing issues associated with Mr. Hightower’s health insurance
coverage, he now desires to have the cafeteria plan payment rolled into his base salary
the same as the other members subject to the Executive MOU. Through this process
he discovered that his Contract does not accurately reflect the parties’ agreement
related the Cafeteria Plan allowance, although he has received the agreed upon amount
at all times since he became employed. The memorandum from County Human
Resources does align with his original understanding of the cafeteria plan.

Mr. Hightower has recently elected to enroll in Employer provided health benefits, as
such, he is currently paying 100% of his health insurance coverage. In order to comply
with LAFCQO’s agreement regarding Mr. Hightower's total compensation, the
Commission and Mr. Hightower desire to amend the Contract in the form of a First
Amendment which will delete the provision related to the Cafeteria Plan allowance and,
in its stead, provide to roll this amount, $923.96, into his base salary bi-weekly as stated
in the memo from Human Resources.

All other terms and conditions contained in the Contract dated September 16, 2022,
would remain in full force and effect.

PROCEDURE

Government Code subsections 54956 (b) and 54957.6 (a) require that final Commission
action on executive compensation take place during the public portion of a regular
meeting The attached resolution provides for approval of the First Amendment to Mr.
Hightower's employment contract as presented by the Commission’s labor
representative and accepted by Mr. Hightower.

Exhibit A Letter from Jennifer Goodman, Director of Human Resources,
Dated August 25, 2023
Exhibit B Employee Contract

Exhibit C Resolution 23-1529



Exhibit A

" SAN JOAQUIN Human Resources Division
'3 e 2 T COUNTY=—= Jennifer Goodman, Director
kl“-’?’"‘ W7 Greatness grows here Rachel Novetzke, Assistant Director

August 25, 2023

Memorandum

TO: Employees in Elected Officials (O), Executive (A) and Senior Management (B)
Unrepresented Units

FROM: Jennifer Goodman, Director of Human Resources

RE: Clarification on Special Open Enroliment Effectivé Dates Due to County

Contribution Change

This communication is being sent to provide clarification on the effective date for rolling the
cafeteria allowance into the base wage salary and County benefits structure for the Elected
Officials (O), Executive (A), and Senior Management (B) Unrepresented Units.

The Special Open Enrollment was held August 7, 2023 -August 18, 202. During this period,
employees in these units had the opportunity to change benefits options, if desired, with the
cafeteria allowance rolling into their base wage salary.

The table below summarizes the effective dates of all upcoming actions following the Special
Open Enroliment:

Action Effective Date
Cafeteria Allowance Rolls into Base Wage Salary 8/28/2023
Special Open Enroliment Benefits Coverage Begins 9/11/2023
Payroll Check Reflecting Changes/Deductions 9/15/2023

If you have any questions and/or concerns regarding this communication, please contact
Christine Vega, Personnel Analyst Il - Benefits, 209-953-7429 or cvega@sjgov.org.

JG:cv

cc. Employee Benefits Units
Lori Rolleri, Chief Deputy Auditor-Controller -Payroll

44 N. San Joaquin Street, Suite 330 | Stockton, California 95202 | T 209 468 3370 | F 209 468 0508 | humanresources@sjgov.org



Exhibit B

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT BY AND BETWEEN
THE SAN JOAQUIN LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION AND JEFFREY
HIGHTOWER FOR THE POSITION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

This First Amended Employment Contract (‘“First Amendment”) is made and entered into
by and between the San Joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission (“Emplover”), and Jeffery
Hightower, an individual (“Employee”). Employer and Employee may be referred to hereinafter
as a “‘Party” or collectively as the “Parties.” There are no other parties to this First Amendment.

RECITALS

A. The Parties entered into an Employment Contract for the position of Executive
Officer effective September 16, 2022 (““‘Contract”), which was intended to set forth the terms and
conditions of Employee’s employment as negotiated and agreed upon by the Parties.

B. Section 8 of the Contract provides that Employee shall be entitled to group health
insurance and other fringe benefits as provided to the executive employee of San Joaquin County
(“County”) through the Executive Bargaining Unit Memorandum of Understanding (“Executive
MOU”), as amended. On June 6, 2023, the County Board of Supervisors adopted a resolution
setting forth the terms and conditions of employment for the County executive employees
designated San Joaquin County Resolution R-23-93, Implementing Certain Terms and Conditions
of Employment For Members of the Executive Representation Unit (“Resolution R-23-93").

& As agreed by Employer, pursuant to section 2.1 of the Resolution, Employee was
to receive a bi-weekly Cafeteria Plan allowance in the amount of Nine Hundred Twenty-Three and
96/100 Dollars ($923.96.)

D. On or about August 25, 2023, Employee received a memorandum from the San
Joaquin County Director of Human Resources, stating that County executive employees have the
option to roll their Cafeteria Plan Allowance into their base salary and enroll in or change benefits
during a special enrollment period.

El The Parties have recently discovered that Section 8 of the Contact related to fringe
benefits and perquisites to which Employee is entitled does not reflect the Parties’ intent in that it
inaccurately sets forth the amount of Cafeteria Plan Allowance to which the Parties agreed as part
of Employee’s total compensation.

F. Notwithstanding the erroneous language in the Contract, Employee has received
the agreed upon Cafeteria Plan Allowance in the amount of Nine Hundred Twenty-Three and
96/100 Dollars ($923.96) per bi-weekly pay period during the term of his employment.

G. Employee has elected to enroll in Employer provided health benefits and roll the
Cafeteria Plan Allowance he has been receiving into his base salary thus, the Parties have agreed
to amend the Contract to maintain Employee’s agreed upon total compensation and eligibility for
benefits as on the same terms and conditions as those provided to County executive employees.

First Amendment to Executive Officer Employment Contract
Jeffrey Hightower San Joaquin LAFCO
Page 1 of 5



H. The Parties now desire to amend the terms and conditions of the Contract in accord
with the San Joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission’s authorization as set forth below.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the
Parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by
this reference and made a part of this First Amendment. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the recitals and section 1 through 12 of this First Amendment, sections 1 through 12 will
prevail.

Section 2. Effect of Original Contract. Except as otherwise provided herein, all provisions,
defined terms, and obligations in the original Contract remain in full force and effect. The Parties
agree that they will continue to be bound by all terms of the Contract except as modified by this
First Amendment. All capitalized terms used in this First Amendment, which are not otherwise
defined herein, shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Contract.

Section 3. Definition of Contract The Contract, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and this First
Amendment, collectively make and are defined together to be the “Contract”.

Section 4. Effective Date. This First Amendment shall be effective as of the date it is
executed by both Parties (“Effective Date”™).

Section 5. Amendments. The Contract is amended as follows:
Section 4. SALARY is hereby amended to read as follows:

Employer agrees to pay Employee for his duties as Executive Officer a base annual salary of
One Hundred Fifty-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred Seventy-Three and 96/100 Dollars
(8159,773.96) payable biweekly or according to the payroll cycle of other employees of the
Employer, subject to normal withholdings.

Section 8. FRINGE BENEFITS AND PERQUISITES is herby amended to
read as follows:

A. Employee shall be entitled to those group health insurance benefits, short-term and long-term
disability benefits, life insurance benefits, and other fringe benefits and perquisites provided to
the executive bargaining unit employees of San Joaquin County consistent with the policies and
practices of San Joaquin County and benefit plan requirements (including eligibility provisions),
as set forth in Resolution R-23-93, as may be amended or replaced from time to time. A true and
exact copy of Resolution R-23-93 effective as of the Effective Date of this Contract is attached
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit B Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Employer shall provide Employee with the following fringe benefits and perquisite:

First Amendment to Executive Officer Employment Contract
Jeffrey Hightower San Joaquin LAFCO
Page 2 of 5



(1) Employee has the option of participating in a 457 Deferred Compensation Plan.
Employer shall contribute 5% of Employee’s annual base salary, or other amount as
may be provided by Employer’s policy for executive management, to Employee’s 457
Deferred Compensation Plan account. Such contributions by Employer shall be made
in biweekly installments or according to Employer’s payroll cycle.

(2) Employee has the option of enrolling in County medical plans with coverage and
premium contributions on the same terms and conditions as is provided to County
executive employees under section 2 of Resolution R-23-93, as may be amended or
replaced from time to time. As of the effective date of this First Amendment, Employer
shall contribute eighty percent (80%) of the premiums for the standard PPO or HMO
at all tier levels and Employee shall contribute the remaining twenty (20%).

(3) Employer shall pay the premium on a County Life Insurance policy with a benefit of
$10,000.

(4) Employer shall pay an automobile allowance of Five Hundred Eighty-Five Dollars
(3585.00) per month, payable biweekly or according to Employer’s payroll cycle,
subject to normal and usual withholdings.

(5) Employee shall be entitled to eighty (80) hours (non-cumulative) of Administrative
Leave per year.

B. This Contract shall control to the extent of any inconsistency between a benefit, perquisite, or
other term provided by this Contract and the policies and practices generally applicable to
Employer’s employees. This Contract shall also control to the extent of any inconsistency
between any benefit, perquisite, or other term provided by this Contract and the Executive MOU,
as amended.

Section 6. Integrated Agreement. The Contract and this First Amendment contain all of the
agreements of the Parties, and all previous understandings, negotiations, and agreements are
integrated into the Contract and the First Amendment.

Section 7. Severability. In the event that any one or more of the phrases, sentences, clauses,
paragraphs, or sections contained in this First Amendment are declared invalid or unenforceable
by a valid judgment or decree of a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or
unenforceability shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, sentences, clauses, paragraphs, or
sections of this First Amendment, which are hereby declared as severable and shall be interpreted
to carry out the intent of the Parties herein.

Section 8. Counterparts. This First Amendment may be executed simultaneously and, in
several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but which together shall be
deemed one and the same instrument.

First Amendment to Executive Officer Employment Contract
Jeffrey Hightower San Joaquin LAFCO
Page 3 of 5



Section 9. Authority. All Parties to this First Amendment warrant and represent that they
have the power and authority to enter into this First Amendment and the names, titles, and
capacities herein stated on behalf of any entities, persons, states, or firms represented or purported
to be represented by such entities, persons, states, or firms and that all former requirements
necessary or required by the state or federal law in order to enter into this First Amendment have
been fully complied with.

Section 10. Document Preparation. This First Amendment will not be construed against the
Party preparing it but will be construed as if prepared by all Parties.

Section 11.  Advice of Legal Counsel. Each Party acknowledges that they have reviewed and
understand the provisions of this First Amendment and have had the opportunity to seek the advice
of legal counsel, if desired, and is freely and voluntarily entering into this First Amendment.

Section 12.  Attorney’s Fees and Costs. If any action at law or in equity, including action for
declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret provisions of this First Amendment, the
prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attomey's fees and costs, which may be set by the
court in the same action, or in a separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other
relief to which such Party may be entitled.

[Signature Page To Follow]

First Amendment to Executive Officer Employment Contract
Jeffrey Hightower San Joaquin LAFCO
Page 4 of 5



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this First Amendment has been entered into by and between

Employer and Employee as of the Effective Date.

EMPLOYEE:
Jeffrey Hightower, an individual

EMPLOYER:
San Joaquin Local Agency Formation
Commission

By:
Jeffrey Hightower
Date Signed: Date Signed:
Attest: Approved as to Form:
By: By:

Mitzi Stites, Commission Clerk

Date Signed:

Douglas L. White, Interim Legal Counsel

Dated:

First Amendment to Executive Officer Employment Contract

Jeffrey Hightower San Joaquin LAFCO
Page 5 of 5



RESOLUTION NO. 23-1528

A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN JOAQUIN LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION
COMMISSION APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE EMPLOYMENT
CONTRACT BY AND BETWEEN THE SAN JOAQUIN LOCAL AGENCY
FORMATION COMMISSION AND JEFFREY HIGHTOWER FOR THE POSITION
OF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

WHEREAS, Jeffery Hightower (‘“Hightower”) has served in the position of Executive
Officer of the San Joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission (“Commission” or “LAFCQO”)
since September 26, 2022, pursuant to an Employment Contract executed on that date
(“Contract”); and

WHEREAS, Hightower and the Commission recently discovered that Section 8 of the
Contact related to fringe benefits and perquisites to which Hightower is entitled does not reflect
Hightower’s and LAFCO’s agreement on Hightower’s total compensation as it inaccurately sets
forth the terms related to the Cafeteria Plan Allowance; and

WHEREAS, Notwithstanding the erroneous language in the Contract, Hightower has
acknowledged he has received the agreed upon Cafeteria Plan Allowance at all times since he
became employed, and

WHEREAS, Hightower is no longer eligible to receive the Cafeteria Plan allowance due
to enrollment in LAFCO provided employee health plans; and

WHEREAS, in order to maintain Hightower’s total compensation as agreed to at the time
of his hire, the Commission and Hightower desire to amend Hightower’s Contract to increase his
base salary in an amount equal to the Cafeteria Allowance he will no longer receive and

WHEREAS, the Commission and Hightower have agreed to the compensation, terms and
conditions in the attached First Amendment to the Employment Contract by and between The San
Joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission and Jeffrey Hightower for the Position of Executive
Officer.

NOW, THEREFORE, the San Joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER that the First Amendment to the
Employment Contract by and between The San Joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission
and Jeffrey Hightower for the Position of Executive Officer attached to this Resolution as Exhibit
“A” and incorporated by reference herein is hereby approved.

{CW132637.2}



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10" day of October 2023 by the following roll call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

ATTEST:

MITZI STITES, COMMISSION CLERK
SAN JOAQUIN LOCAL AGENCY
FORMATION COMMISSION

{CW132637.2}

TOM PATTI, CHAIRPERSON
SAN JOAQUIN LOCAL AGENCY
FORMATION COMMISSION



gan Joaquin

L/ \FCO Balancing Community and Commerce
Local Agency Formation Commission I

The Gateway County

44 N. SAN JOAQUIN STREET  SUITE 374 STOCKTON, CA 95202  209-468-3198

EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

DATE: October 12, 2023
TO: LAFCo Commissioners
FROM: J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer

suBJECT:  Time Extension for Pereira Reorganization to the
City of Ripon (LAFC 11-20)

Recommendation

It is recommended that an extension until December 12, 2024 be granted to the
Pereira Reorganization to the City of Ripon (Ripon) for the completion of the Condition
of Approval.

Background

On October 8, 2020, July 8, 2021, the Commission approved the annexation of the
Pereira Reorganization to Ripon for the development of 47 single-family residential
units. This original approval was subsequently extended on July 8, 2021 and October
8, 2022. Both extensions were one (1) year extensions. Staff's recommendation is to
grant a time extension that coincides with the project’s Development Agreement (DA)
performance clause date of 12/31//2024.

Previously, the Commission granted one year time extensions to allow the developer,
Highland Partners Group, Inc. (HPG), to secure needed off-site right-of-way from
neighboring property owners. On July 21, 2023, HPG requested another extension.
After discussions with both Ripon and HPG, it is staff's opinion that HPG have made a
good faith effort at securing the needed right-of-way. No new policies applicable to
the annexation have been adopted by the Commission since approving the project in
2020, allowing the request to be consistent with Commission policies.

The annexation area consists of two assessor parcels and portions of two adjacent
parcels. The portions of the adjacent parcels are necessary for the full roadway width
of John Roos Avenue and Shasta Avenue. (please see Exhibit A-Tentative
Subdivision Map). Consistent with CKH Section 56668(f), the recordation of a

PHONE 209-468-3198 E-MAIL jdhightower@sjgov.org WEB SITE https://www.sjgov.org/commission/tafco/home



Certificate of Completion for the annexation is conditioned upon HPG completing a lot
line adjustment for the street right-of-ways.

CKH Section 56668(f) directs that only full assessment parcels are annexed, thus the
need for the lot line adjustments prior to filing the Certificate of Completion that
finalizes the annexation. The approval requires the project applicant to execute
agreements with the adjacent property owners for dedication of their land to complete
the lot line adjustment so that full assessment parcels are remaining. The landowners
of these two adjacent properties have agreed in principle to dedicate a portion of their
land for the road extension. HPG experienced delays in finalizing the details for the lot
line adjustments.

The time extension will allow, consistent with CKH Section 56668(d), the 47 lot
subdivision to provide a planned, orderly, efficient addition to Ripon. Pursuant to CKH
Section 56668(h) the time extension will facilitate development according to Ripon’s
General Plan. The project benefits by having a duly executed Development
Agreement (DA) between Ripon and HPG. The DA has a performance clause date of
December 31, 2024. Unless development starts by December 31, 2024 (moving dirt,
cutting streets, etc.) the DA terms.

To be consistent with the DA, staff recommends an extension date to December 12,
2024, the last regularly scheduled LAFCo meeting date prior to the performance
clause date. CKH Section 57001 provides that, “The extension may be for any period
deemed reasonable to the commission for completion of necessary prerequisite
actions by any party.”

A Motion is attached for Commission consideration.

Attachments:

Exhibit A Resolution

Exhibit A-Vicinity Map

Exhibit B-Request for Extension date



Attachment "A"

Highland Pariners Group, Inc.

Development znd Asget Management

July 21, 2023

San Joaquin LAFCO

Mr. JD Hightower, Executive Officer
44 N. San Joaquin Street, Suite 374
Stockton, CA 95202

Re: Pereira Reorganization/Annexation to the City of Ripon, Resolution No. 1437

Dear Mr. Hightower,

I am writing to you regarding the above referenced Annexation that was conditionally approved
by LAFCO on October 9, 2020, and subsequently extended until October 9, 2023. As you lanow,
LAFCO’s Resolution 1437 required lot line adjustments be recorded prior to filing a Certificate
of Completion. The lot line adjustments are necessary to include perimeter streets which are
required to be incorporated within the boundaries of our annexation. Unfortunately, it has taken
considerably longer than expected to perfect the lot line adjustments and the rise in interest rates
have also caused this process to be delayed.

Due to these unanticipated delays, we respectively request a continuance or extension for one-
year to provide sufficient time to record our lot line adjustments and satisfy our conditions from
LAFCO.

We thank you in advance for your consideration and please let me know if you need anything
else from us to process our request.

Sipgerely

HP&/Ripon Development LLC

Hightend Partners Group, Inc. P.O. Box 1096 Danville, CA 94526
tel- 925.314.9040 fax: 925.831.8374 email: info@highiandpartnersgroup.com  web: www.highlandpartnersgroup.com



PEREIRA RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION
TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
RIPON, CALIFORNIA

RLVISIONS

DESCHITONS

W A0
o

o

OSTING JLECTROAL
g veued .

[

CALIFORNIA

0. ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER
£ DOSTHG L0 15T

F PROPOSED LAMD USE-

G. CXSTMG 2ONNG/GP:

. PROPOSED ZONNG/GP:

© 10 PROXCT SZE

3. TOI. MAEER Of LOTS:

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
PEREIRA SUBDIVISION

\
i X DENSIY 288 ua
! L conouss 107001 WIERALS

ananan 4 ¥ REIRGS IR GIY OF RPON STANGARD OCIAL ST-260

COVER AND CROSS SECTION SHEET

RIPON,

AL MPROEUENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AS PER THE CITY OF RWON STANDARD
PUNS AND SPECI CATIONS.

STORM ORAMAGE: BY POSTVE SYSTEM 10 THE CITY OF RPON STORM DRANAGE
STSTEM. 10 BE CONSTRUCIED T0 THE QY OF RIPON STANGARDS.

SEWAGE OFSFOSAL: BY OIY OF RPON SEWER STSTEM

SIREET LIGHTING SHALL B ISIALLED AS PER THE CITY OF RIFON STANDARDS

PUBUC UTUTIES ARE 10 BE INSTALLED LNDER GROUND & CASEMENTS.

1
2
3
4 WAIGR SUPRLY. BY CTY OF RPON WATER SYSTEM
s,
[
7

2 S o i
(200) $30-3525 Prore  (209) A24-380K for

WSS cum erTen SOOMX KR OV OF e o o
WO SIMDNRD OF Tan. RPON STAMCARD 0K
OSANT BAY DRV o ey e ;
: . 200 & PURSUANT 10 SECTON 664 e Su 1 e W of
‘)!-wnncg PAVEMCNT "1t C® O Of BOv SANCAD ;MEKEW":SE 1526 OF THE “SUBOVSION WAP ACT", TMC
0/ B DEtaw $1-21 (YR

s ()T oAve.
s

9 PUBLC UIUTY CASCMENTS WAL BE PROVOED ALONG AL SIRECT FRONIACE
10. BULDING SETBACKS WIL B AS PER THE CIY OF RFON MUNCPAL COOE

11 AL EUSTNG STRUCTURES ANO TREES ART T0 B REWOVD UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOIED, [XCEFT AL EXSTING STRUCTURES AND TREES ON LO1 48, SEPTIC TANKS,
LEACH TIELDS, ANO WELLS ON SITE WL BC REWOVED OR ABANDONED AS PER CITY
OF RFON AND SAN JOAQUN COUNTY REQUAEMENTS.

12, DOSING WATER WELL 10 RENAN N PUCE AND ACTME UNTL EXSSTING HOUSE
CONNCTE 10 GITY OF RFON WATER SUPPLY.

CITY ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATE

1D 1 N SIAIC O SO CONTY OF Sa
3 DUSCREED AS FALLOWS e NS S1-21 (P
ORI Ood hAS OF W€ SOUTIIST QUAHICE OF THC MONIMeCST
. . U (Gl (AS], WOUT DRRLO BASE MO ..

Sadeiix %R OT | WUEET CORIET AT IS WAP S BN ROVEWED FOR COMPLANGE W THC
QL. 1 L8 e SR REGUREMENTS OF THE CIY OF RPON MNCPAL CODE A0 T SUEONSON WP ACT AS 10
SHASIA MENUE 108 A CONTENT

GV INGREER o

COPTRIGNT ©_2020_ WORTHSTAR ENGINEERING GROUP, IN




D RS SMETIREIM] RYLIMAI0N TTTT S jeSiaiadd

RN ' |

‘ l

i
3 i
g ! [Ehe
é, i A 3]

. 1 o v

{ : ' "
- Tl
$ \ L AMe 1 suiso——3.
7‘ ————————— o pon Ly DSy e
£
i )

NOd!

]
e — -

D
f— m\(j
! swewn 3o o153 |
o s mem f
==~ 3-/5 A

o 7
gg o g e #
gg 3 Sl T NGy A
a1
> o ' | e K VDO oMy mesh e
=8l @ e L S
; \ /
SRR : | ooy 1f o avoone o
og T ) ' i | /f» = Tinws pesar —
=< = 0= i — = p i o ——— — —
Ss | b3
wnz 2 5
-3 1
Z3| Z s
§ \ I‘( = ol
E : i e
g Bt T b T R, Y= - e T T T e
2 i}
2 ‘u '
0 S g 1 H
E \'L’ \& § ——m, "l T i (€] TN TSI v -T 3
0/0 X“ E L s wn i i Invm] oo
n ) & e e e . o vl TEOIH \ | i
0n oaErRIS K J MLty ) :::: w T e e e A 1w TEVIO-hOW = - — (\9— =1k
b e ' v i ) e
I W, G T T R :::.: v _— (M08 DONOHA KO 00OW) JNI 1 L%%q" Sd% i H
. l:;-., P TR TR N wn e~ w0 | ) N ’Yﬁa I —h
L VTR & s " e KA onyg I I A |
§ I !\\Q} /,\/\ v/n . SIS VU0 [} ‘ | ”
5. i/ e o %1"‘5 o o wn re-@ o) ¥ | | n
HE g L] . 704 DTS SN S |
3 L e o wm — i — o wsars | fe i ?
E—m i kY T e BT || —e— r—— e s -
i " e v ANNIAV VISVES
/5 . WM ive Ib ___I__7
. . i —— lew) 20 ( |>
N 7 /\q!: ; bovn) v | |
Y \v v/ = v @y0 ' |
: 01,’0)\;84 e [ TOH AR 00 ROLS | | :
</ ] w (o) w5 OIS | —
w/n NVAYDS O HILNO ‘B0 | | \
mn F———— 4 o
— —_— ] ——— a-0-pony v | £
| SRS - e o)
i [ S , / v
-

" |
TIS008d s m I /




AOTD /NS B3 ACTID B Paeren
ORANE. FAIB-1524 P S\ P\ VTV b

EXISTING PROPOSED UG
T e
NI _— F0POSCO
PARMENT
RGHT-OF -wAY —_———— | ——_———
L e
ot e | e
\\\\\\\\\ PROPOSLD
A, CUTIER AN SO e e COnCRETE
FROPOSD
PARS

|
o o s s S i Yo i SN i ol
SHASTA AYENLR
s | s
1
2 771 ’
3
....... E:::.-j ﬂ_\m\.::ﬂ e e | (8 M m i
3 ! 27 afa 2 Vb v N 2 =
® s B wm r._.“ﬂ uuﬂ_,ﬂ Nmﬂ. ) E ]
5 L : >N Il 2T
% T al
{ I % 4
] . 6518 & i
“ 3 MW i Fhu 105 ; _
naois )\l N\ A ! \
¥ IS : .
M x 1l s 11111
& % B 1o - | m
B [ ¢
43 gl 73 ; b4
1208 ¥ i 2 ,N A
_nu“ﬂ‘ m 14 W s m _
@ W Vi met B | 3
> = i
g e 42 & ! r4
e T BB | | z 35
| S i el w Lb | i M 1]
B! i : 1 1 i a mM
A N RS AAAANA B 2 b | I i a
008 QERTRTRRS i I !
'“r)“u\u\a\a\t“,mm”m« e R | u 3 =
: — ) | _ % 22
..... R R A N 2 » S ) S - m na
sl || s
B2 3 A 32 o AR
wwy 0| as 2 e m 1 ﬂ.\ == i — WE
s g , a
@ ar s !
w 1
I ]
| . s
\\\\\\\ A ——
¢ | §r : 8
" , z
! i
i =
ST K
S - 1 m"
1 ! 33
| ! i
ﬂ | C——
- t ek ol J ;
I I o
| _ j
] '
| | 5
L _ g
| [EFES i ;
\
IIIII » ! !
% 1
tid |
f R 4
I‘ o |
i
s _ !
i N
| seesces J_
|

COPYRIGHT ©_2020  NORTHSTAR (NGINEERING GROUP,




Attachment "B"

T ] feas
i | IR I
I} 1 1 £ g
’ L i AL

f3|||ﬁ}i..m.__||||||lﬁs,| |||+||

e xa|s.“_,| — e e — e e

COPTRIGHT ©_2020_ wGsbrsfud EnGot 1w GHULP, et

[
T on

UTILITY PLAN

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
PEREIRA SUBDIVISION

CALIFORNIA




	Agenda Item No One - Summary of Minutes
	Agenda Item No. 2 - Amendment to the Executive Officer Employee Contract
	Agenda Item No. 3 - Time Extention for Pereira Reorganization to the City of Ripon

